ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 11, 2014
8:.06 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Represent ati ve Doug | saacson
Represent ati ve Jonat han Krei ss- Tonki ns

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representative Charisse MIlett
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 274

"An Act relating to public hearings on initiatives and referenda
scheduled to appear on the ballot; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED HB 274 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO 18
Proposi ng amendnents to the Constitution of the State of Al aska
relating to the office of attorney general.

- MOVED HIR 18 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE Bl LL NO. 275
"An Act relating to electronic publication of certain nunicipal
notices and to publication and electronic distribution of
reports by state agencies."

- MOVED CSHB 275(CRA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 199
"An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety regulations
allowing village public safety officers to carry firearns."

- HEARD & HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 11, 2014



BILL: HB 274
SHORT TI TLE:. HEARI NGS ON REFERENDA
SPONSOR(s): RULES

01/ 24/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 24/ 14 (H) STA, JUD

02/ 06/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 06/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 06/ 14 (H) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 11/ 14 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HIR 18

SHORT TI TLE. CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL
SPONSOR(s): STOLTZE

01/ 21/ 14 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 10/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 04/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 04/ 14 (H Heard & Hel d

02/ 04/ 14 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 11/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 275
SHORT TI TLE. ELECTRONI C DI STRIB. OF REPORTS/ NOTI CES
SPONSOR(s): HAVKER

01/ 24/ 14 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 24/ 14 (H CRA, STA

02/ 04/ 14 (H) CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 14 (H Moved CSHB 275(CRA) Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 14 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 07/ 14 (H) CRA RPT CS(CRA) 6DP

02/ 07/ 14 (H DP: HERRON, FOSTER  REINBOLD, OLSON,
LEDOUX, NAGEAK

02/ 11/ 14 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: HB 199
SHORT TI TLE: VPSO FI REARVS
SPONSOR(s): EDGMVON

04/ 04/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 04/ 13 (H CRA, STA

01/ 28/ 14 (H CRA AT 8:00 AM BARNES 124

01/ 28/ 14 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 14 (H M NUTE( CRA)

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 11, 2014



02/ 04/ 14 (H CRA AT 8: 00 AM BARNES 124

02/ 04/ 14 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

02/ 04/ 14 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

02/ 05/ 14 (H CRA RPT 5DP 1NR

02/ 05/ 14 (H DP: REINBOLD, FOSTER, HERRON, LEDQOUX,
NAGEAK

02/ 05/ 14 (H NR: OLSON

02/ 11/ 14 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

JEFF TURNER, St aff

Representative Charisse MIllett

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Present ed HB 275 on behal f
Representative MIlett, sponsor

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced HIR 18.

M KE COONS
Pal mer, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HIR 18.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HB 275.

KATH E WASSERVAN, Executive Director

Al aska Muni ci pal League (AM.)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 275.

DEBORAH L. REI CH, Forecl osure Speciali st

Real Estate Services Division

Department of Real Estate

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 275.

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON

Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 11,

of

2014



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, presented HB 199.

STEVE ARLOW Captain

C Det achnment Commander

D vision of State Troopers

Department of Public Safety (DPS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions regarding the Village
Public Safety Oficer (VPSO program during the hearing on HB
199.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8. 06: 38 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee
meeting to order at 8:06 a.m Representatives Keller, Gattis,
| saacson, Hughes, Kreiss-Tonkins, and Lynn were present at the

call to order.

HB 274- HEARI NGS ON REFERENDA

8: 06: 55 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 274, "An Act relating to public hearings on initiatives
and referenda scheduled to appear on the ballot; and providing
for an effective date."

8:07:01 AM

JEFF TURNER, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett, Al aska
State Legislature, presented HB 275 on behalf of Representative
MIlett, sponsor. He said the proposed |egislation would extend
the public hearing requirenments for referenduns. He descri bed
it as "an add-on" to House Bill 36, which was passed by the
| egi slature in 2010. He said referenduns do not commonly occur
on the ballot, but noted there would be one later this year. In
response to the chair, he reviewed that an initiative is a voter
initiated item on the ballot that allows the public to enact a
piece of legislation in place of the legislature; a referendum
repeals a law that was passed by the |egislature. M. Powel |
said HB 274 would require the lieutenant governor to hold public
hearings in each of the judicial districts around the states,
and it would require a hearing of a standing commttee of the
| egi sl ature whose nenbers would be chosen by the presiding
of ficers of the House and Senate.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 11, 2014



8:08:47 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

8:08: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he appreciates the sponsor bringing
forward HB 274. He said it seens |like a great bill.

8:09: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he was thinking the sane thing. He
said it seenms necessary and is consistent. He said, "Anytime we
ask people to vote on sonething it is good to educate and have
both sides." He stated his support of the proposed |egislation.
8:09: 29 AM

CHAIR LYNN stated, "I, too, think it's a good thing." Regarding

ref erenduns, he opined public hearings are needed.
8:10: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 274 out of comittee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 274 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

HIR 18- CONST. AM ELECTED ATTORNEY GENERAL

8:10: 31 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
JONT RESOLUTION NO 18, Proposing anendnents to the
Constitution of the State of Alaska relating to the office of
attorney general .

8:10: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced HIR 18. He said one reason to elect the state's
attorney general would be to "sanctify" that he/she would be
"the people's lawer." He indicated that a current AG may cal
hi m herself that, but in fact is the governor's |awer. He said
the resolution is for the future of Al aska. In response to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 11, 2014



chair, he indicated that subsequent to 1972, «constitutional
anmendnents nust appear on the General Election ballot. He said
if the legislature ratifies this by a two-thirds vote in each
body, it would be placed on the [CGeneral Election] ballot. He
added that then it would be in the hands of the voters, in whom
he trusts.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said sone people have suggested that an
el ected attorney general my be politically influenced. He
stated that anyone who has watched attorney generals in Al aska
knows they already are political by nature. He said he trusts
that Alaskans would vet their candidates just as they do
| egi sl ators.

8:14:11 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if it would be possible to have a governor in
one political party and an AG in another.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered yes, and said it currently
happens in about a dozen other states. He surmsed that it
would be the wll of the voters. He said he is not sure there
should be a nandate that the AG and governor are of the sane
party, but suggested a stronger nandate would be that the AG
must be a person that wll support the Constitution of the
United States, the Constitution of the State of Al aska, and the
peopl e of Al aska.

8:14:55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said the sponsor alnpbst had him
convi nced, "especially because of the events here recently.” He
stated, "Sonetimes if you don't have a direct line of
accountability in place, you mght have a different outcone; you
m ght have nore scrutiny on issues and so forth." He said early

in the history of the U S. Constitution it was possible to el ect
a Vice President of a political party different fromthat of the

Pr esi dent. He asked, "Is there a way, perhaps, that we could
close that gap, so that if people are electing a governor of one
party, they could also then have, simlar to the |ieutenant

governor and so forth, a ticket, or is that going to bring too
close of a ... tieback?"

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered that it could be a possibility.
He said the lieutenant governor is tethered to [the governor by
political party]. He indicated that the difference between the
i eutenant governor and all other appointnents is that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 11, 2014



i eutenant governor is elected by the people, does not require
confirmation, and cannot be renoved by the governor. He said it
is part of the process for the conmttee to decide whether to
"propose that change here."

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON cl arified, "How would that be affecting
the intent of your ... legislation?"

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that he was "not sure it would
sol ve everything you would want it to solve,"” but said he thinks
"it would have the same net result, because that person would be
elected by the voters [and] could not be renmoved by the
governor."

8:19: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES suggested sonme may see an elected AG
position as a training ground for governor, which may result in
a lot nore attorneys serving as governor. She then proffered
that a positive effect of HIR 18 may be that it could reduce
turnover of attorneys general. She offered her understanding
that in other states, the AG often serves a full, four-year
term and go on to a second or third term and that under HIR
18, there would be a two-term limt. She asked the sponsor if
he thinks [the proposed |egislation] would inmpact the turnover
rate, and asked, "How do you see that as a plus for Al aska?"

8:20: 07 AM
REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that the average turnover of the

AG is 18 nonths, and HIR 18 would offer sone stability, because
the AG would not be subject to "the whim of a political

di sagreenent.” He said he does not recall a |ieutenant governor
who has ever resigned. He said, "The attorney general, | think
probably would have ... nore powers than the |ieutenant

governor, [but] would not be in the line of succession though.™
He surm sed that norale would be raised within the Departnent of
Law (DAQL), "knowing that they had one person” and "w thout the
vagaries" related to the current steady turnover of attorneys
general .

8:21: 44 AM

CHAIR LYNN asked if there would be any additional cost in adding
anot her [position] for election on the ballot.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 11, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE indicated that the standard cost shown on
a fiscal note for printing an extra page is $1, 500.

8:22:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTI S asked why the sponsor was proposing HIR 18
now, beside the fact that other states [have elected attorneys
general ] .

8:22:39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered that others have pushed the
measure in the past. He offered his understanding that the |ast
three to four attenpts were nmade by [Denocrats]; therefore, he
call ed the issue bi-partisan.

8:23:18 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he is |looking forward to hearing HIR
18 in the House Judiciary Standing Committee (HIJUD), and he
expressed his appreciation to the sponsor for bringing it
forward for consideration. He stated, "In a ... legal system
where crimes are against the state and the attorney general is
also the conm ssioner of the Departnent of Law, | think it's
very, very valuable for the people of Al aska to be able to know
who their attorney general is." He indicated intent to remain
open m nded during the hearing of HIR 18, but said it would be
unfair to not state his bias.

8:24:53 AM
CHAIR LYNN rermarked that the AG is basically a comm ssioner;

therefore, he asked if it would be appropriate to elect "all the
di fferent conm ssioners."”

8:25:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered that he will not delve into that
debat e. He opined that the position of AG "rises to a nuch
hi gher |evel." He stated that the average AG can make |aw
faster than [the legislature]; the opinion of an AG can nullify
a statute or regulation. He said recently the 1|ieutenant
governor turned down a citizens' initiative, based on the

opinion of an assistant and signed by the AG and he said it
bothers him that an assistant AG has nore power than the people
of Al aska, but with no accountability.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 11, 2014



8:26:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noted that city and borough assenblies
and councils wusually have the power to hire and fire their
attorneys. Looking back on his experience as mayor [of the City
of North Pole], he said he used whatever attorney was there and
had no issues with them however, if he had wanted to term nate
the attorney for not representing the interest of the city, it
woul d have been a political battle. He questioned what would
happen if the AG was elected and turned out not to be serving
the state's best interest and it was too cunbersone a process to
remove that AG from office. He suggested following the
muni ci pal nodel by having the legislature hire and fire the AG
which mght provide a quicker political process, because the
| egi sl ature would know whether the interests of the state were
bei ng served and the governor would not be directly controlling
"that one function."” He asked the sponsor for his feedback.

8:28:04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE, returning to Chair Lynn's previous
question, said in nost states in the wunion, the agricultural
director or commission is elected, while in Alaska it is a
political appointnment, and the only qualification is that the
person mnust be a citizen of the United States. Regar di ng
Representative |saacson's question, he said he is not sure about
bringing the legislature into the process. He surmsed that the
| egislature has the ability to bring an attorney general before
it for a hearing if there are grounds to do so; however, he said
sonetines people won't show up for a hearing. For exanple, he
related that a previous admnistration chose an AG the next
adm nistration retained the AG but the AG would often decline
to appear before the judiciary commttees or would send
surrogat es. He offered his understanding that it would require
an anendnent to the Constitution of the State of Alaska to give
the power to the legislature to "mcromanage the attorney
general ," which is sonmething he said he does not want to do. He
enphasi zed that he wants the AG to work for the people. He
said, "I think an attorney general that's working for the people
woul d have no problem with the appropriation process here, just
like they don't right now" He indicated that there are critics
of the way things are working right now and the way that is
proposed in HIR 18.

8:30: 14 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 11, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE  KREI SS- TOWKI NS expressed concern over t he
possi ble | oss of coordination between a governor and attorney
general of differing political parties. He asked about that
situation in other states and whether the sponsor thinks it
woul d be as pronounced in Al aska.

8:31:23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE indicated that it would be no different
from having a governor and |ieutenant governor who disagree.
For exanple, he recollected there was a |ieutenant governor who
did not support the re-election of the governor's daughter. He
said there are conflicts in other states, such as when an
attorney general runs against the governor. He stated,
"Sonetinmes ... [when] trying to figure out how to stop politics
you inject nore politics.™ He admtted that sone people may
accuse him of doing just that, but noted that he has received
support from his constituents and coll eagues for the proposed
joint resolution. He said there have been governors and
attorneys general who have worked well together and those who
have not, and he indicated that there are no guarantees,
irrespective of whether an AGis appointed or el ected.

8:33:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expressed appreciation to the sponsor for
poi nting out how under HIR 18, the AG would be nore accountable
to the people of Alaska. She said she values the public's vote
and hopes [a race for AG would not beconme a beauty or public
speaki ng contest, because she ventured that sonmeone who is not a
good public speaker could be a good attorney general. She
stated her support of [HIR 18] as a "healthy process."” She said
she thinks it 1is good that the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee will be considering whether there would be sone way to
recall an AG She questioned whether the race for AG would
appear on the primary ballot by party in a long list of nanes on
the General Election ballot.

8:35: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE answered that under HIR 18, the process
for electing the AG would be the sane as the current process for

el ecting the |I|ieutenant governor. He said, "The Iieutenant
governor is alnost witten as another exenption.” The AG would
run separately or as "a triad," depending on the will of the
conmittee.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 11, 2014



8:36:24 AM

CHAIR LYNN said the <concept 1is interesting, but expressed
concern about the possibility of having a governor and AG with
opposi ng Vi ews. He opined that the AG who advises the
governor, should have simlar philosophical views.

8:38:25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE surm sed that if the chair believes that
t he governor and AG should be phil osophically aligned, then HIR
18 is probably not legislation he would support. He
reenphasi zed that the purpose of changing the AGs position to
an elected one is to make hinmher a direct representative of the
peopl e.

CHAIR LYNN remarked that all elected officials are in office to
serve the people, and he suggested that by advising the governor
on the constitutionality of proposed |aw, he/she is serving the
peopl e.

8:40: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he cannot predict every possible
scenario in which there nmay be conflict. He stated, "I'm not
trying to cast aspersions on anybody, but it's a different
rel ati onship when the attorney general, first and forenost, is

t he governor's attorney."

CHAI R LYNN suggested at |east electing an AG who shares the sane
political party.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE reiterated that he is "anenable to the

deli berations of the commttee.” Notw thstanding that, he said,
"I think philosophy isn't something we can define by statute
and party doesn't necessarily define philosophy as ... we know

fromsonme of our critics."”
8:42: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTIS stated, "I think nost of us get the fact
that if we were appointed by sonebody, we certainly have a
certain allegiance by who may have appointed us, versus if we're
el ected by sonebody else - the voters - we certainly have an
al l egiance there." She proffered that the question being asked
is for whom[the AG works.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 11, 2014



8:42: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER offered a rem nder that |egal counsel to
the governor is not just the AG because as head of the
Department of Law, the AG has deputy comm ssioners, many of whom
give council in specific areas. He said, "By electing ... an
attorney general, | think we would begin to see that process
better in the electorate.”

CHAIR LYNN stated his assunption the [assistant attorneys
general] would not want to irritate their boss by "comng up
wi th opposite opinions on everything."

8:44:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON noted that WHKkipedia says an AG is the
advi sor to the governor, while the Encycl opedia Britannica says
the AGis "the chief law officer of the state or nation and the

| egal advisor to the chief executor."” He said everyone seens to
recogni ze that the AG is going to advise the governor, but the
AG is also the chief l|egal counsel for the state. He opi ned

that there is a distinction between the governor and the
government, the latter being of the people. At the sane tine,

he said, the legislature is the governnment, as well, and nakes
laws, and 1in sone aspects the AG needs to advise the
| egi sl ature. Furt her, he said, the AG Ilooks out for
infringenents of |aw outside the state. Representative |saacson
said he thinks the point to consider is where the Iline of
accountability is to be drawn. He said he thinks this relates

back to the Seventeenth Amendnent, which he recommended shoul d
be considered as a corollary. He asked the sponsor to weigh in

on the distinction between governor and governnent. He further
asked how the sponsor would "educate his thinking" so that he
m ght "align nore to this." He said he sees value in [HIR 18],

but expressed concern that it may have uni nt ended consequences.

8:47:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he thought Representative |saacson
made a good distinction. He said there are differences and
simlarities. He said he hopes that if things are working as
they should, an AG representing the governnment is representing
the people's interest as well. He said that could extend to an

elected AG who certainly would have his/her own initiatives.
He nentioned "what Attorney General Sullivan did on [ Governor
Sean Parnell's] Choose Respect [canpaign].” He indicated that
activism and questioning the governnment is seen nore often from

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 11, 2014



[an elected] AG serving the public than from a "co-enployee"
t hat does not have "that sanme optic or prism"™

8:49:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated that currently the governor signs
the paychecks of state enployees, and an elected attorney
general would be the boss to those working in the Departnent of
Law. She questioned whether the governor would have any say if
there were people in the departnment he/she did not feel should
be there anynore. She offered her understanding that that
relati onship would be different, but questioned how.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE nentioned an appropriation process in
ot her states. He then said the Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget
(OVMB) does not review the court budget; the court system
presents its budget to the |egislative branch. He i ndicated
that the proposed joint resolution outlines the inplenentation
process for electing the AG and that process could be fine-
t uned. He stated that he envisions that the AG would present
t he budget through the | egislative arm

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES i ndi cated she was thinking of a situation
in which the governor may have a problem with a particular AG
outside of |legislative session and the appropriation process,
and asked how the relationship would be different in other
st at es.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE replied that other states have different
personnel rul es. He added, "I don't think we'd be eviscerating
t he enpl oyee rights.”

8:52:45 AM

M KE COONS noted he had submitted witten testinony [included in
the conmttee packet]. He expressed his hope that [the A(G
woul d not be "a yes nan or yes worman." He stated his support of
HIR 18. He directed attention to [a sentence] on page 1, line
16, through page 2, line 1, of HIR 18, which read, "A person is
not eligible to serve as attorney general unless the person
nmeets the qualifications for a superior court judge." M. Coons
stated that no one who has "run for a judge" wll answer
guestions regarding subjects such as crimnal penalties and
m ni mum or maxi num sentences, the stated reason being that they
may have to make a decision on one of those issues. He
guestioned whether "we" would be reduced to candi dates whose
canpai gns focus on the length of tine they have been a judge, a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 11, 2014



| awyer, an Al aska resident, or a part of a fine famly, or if
nore substantive information would be given

MR. COONS stated, "W need to know that the AG will stand for

the law, wll fight back against federal overreach, and give
sound advice to the legislature without waffling as | have seen
fromthis existing Departnment of Law." He paraphrased a portion

of his witten testinony, which read as follows [original
punct uation provided]:

Lastly, I struggl ed about this position being
appointed and vetted and approved or disapproved by
the |I|egislature. | felt that the Governor and
Legislature were in a better position to determ ne the
best AG

MR. COONS explained that his view changed as a result of
corments made by a Senator who believed he and the |egislature
were, by virtue of a college education and superior know edge on
the matter - especially concerning a constitutional anendnent -
nore qualified to nmake that decision for the voters. M. Coons
enphasi zed that he would trust his fellow voters to nake a
val ued deci sion, and he would not give up his vote.

8:55:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he appreciates the point nade by M.
Coons, but said he does not want to confuse this wth the
j udi ci al appoi nt nent process.

8:56: 53 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:57.:20 AM
CHAIR LYNN suggested that the commttee could consider an
amendnent to limt the choice of AG to soneone in the sane party

[as the governor]; however, he said such an anmendnent my be
better addressed by the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee.

8:57:43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he wonders if conceptually it

should be the House State Affairs Standing Commttee that
addresses that anmendnent. He indicated that if the proposed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 11, 2014



| egislation were to pass out of conmittee, he would recomrend
that the conceptual anendnent was in place. He said he sees a
ot of disruption of good governnents, and he does not believe
that's what the people want. He said back when the Seventeenth
Amendnent was passed, the idea was for Senators not to be
"sel ected out of the states,"” but to be voted on by the people.
He opined that "the people ultinmately are the best governnent,"”
and m st akes nmade by voters tend to be corrected |ater.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON stated that one of the values of having
a governor appoint the attorney general is that the governor has
been elected to serve according to a vision that resonated

within the voters. In order to [follow that vision], the
governor nust have departnent heads who will "toe the line." He
said that does not always happen, and when it does not the
result is a dysfunctional governnent. He opined that when it

cones to matters of law, it is inportant to have not just a good
| awyer but one who understands the state and whose phil osophy is
"right." He said if the people elect sonmeone who is recently
from another state, and that person is charismatic and has a
great record but does not understand the issues particular to
Al aska, then the state is stuck with that AG for four years
whereas, an appointed AG that is not working out could |eave
sooner .

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON opi ned that Al aska, at over 50 years of
age, cannot afford to "play lightly" with its future, which is
i nsecure at present because there are too many people in charge
that do not understand the requirenents of the state's
constitution. He said he could envision how an elected AG not
knowi ng the "peculiarities" of Al aska's state governnent, could
shut down resource devel opnent. He said the states lost their
power to control federal overreach when they l|ost the power to
"insert people selected by the various legislatures in to the
Senate" to protect the states' interests.

REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON st at ed:
| would say | could go along with this as long as we
at least had alignnent of parties. | don't want to
see a dysfunctional governnent or one that's divisive
to the best interests of the state.

9:04: 07 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS said the state is hoping to build
a large dianeter natural gas line, and he wonders how the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 11, 2014



coordination between DOL and the executive branch would work,

under HIR 18. He explained that the project is one of
unprecedented scal e and, presumably, would require unprecedented
coor di nati on. He said he also worries that the AG position

would be filled nore by political ability than professional
conpetence. Finally, he said he thinks the AGin Al aska is nore
powerful than the |ieutenant governor, in terns of scope of
power and responsibility. He stated, "I ... think that's a fair
point to make, that the precedent exists. This would be noving
that further, and that's just sonething we should acknow edge."

9:06: 15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated for the record that the House
Judiciary Standing Conmittee, [which he chairs], would consider
an anmendnent on the partisan issue, renoval standards, and
qualifications.

9:07:32 AM

CHAIR LYNN echoed Representative Kreiss-Tonkins' remark that
there is a difference between canpaign ability and |Iegal

ability; just because sonmeone canpaigns well does not nmean
he/she will performwell in office.
9: 07: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS-TOWINS admtted that as a "political
junky,"™ he would relish the idea of having another canpaign to
foll ow.

9:08:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES offered her wunderstanding that 43 other
states elect their AG and she said she would like to know how
many of those states require the elected AG to be of the sane
party as the governor.

9:08: 57 AM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said conm ttee nenbers had asked a | ot of
good questions, and he stated his intent to address their

concer ns. Regarding the concern that soneone elected as AG
m ght not be intimately involved with Al aska, he said an AG that
is appointed does not have to be a resident of the state. He
recalled an AG that left the state right after service. He

indicated that the qualification requirenments for residency and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 11, 2014



citizenship are the sane [for an AG as for other elected
executive positions. He surm sed that Representative |saacson
m ght take nore confort if there was an assurance that the AGis
an Alaska resident - "soneone fanmiliar with Alaska and its
econony and our |egal system because they've |ived here and
wor ked here." He stated that through the existing appointnent
process, there have been people from other states serving as
attorneys general, sone of whom were not even nenbers of the bar
and had to secure that credential.

9:11: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HIJR 18 out of comittee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HIR 18 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

HB 275- ELECTRONI C DI STRI B. OF REPORTS/ NOTI CES

9:11: 51 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO 275, "An Act relating to electronic publication of
certain municipal notices and to publication and electronic
di stribution of reports by state agencies."

[ Before the commttee was CSHB 275( CRA). ]

9:12: 06 AM

The conm ttee took an at-ease from9:12 a.m to 9:14 a.m
9:14: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor,
presented HB 275. He indicated that the two nmain purposes of
the proposed legislation pertain to the state's ability to
pronote efficiency and effectiveness of government and to reduce
unnecessary governnent spending, which he said could also be
cal l ed governnent waste. He said the first three sections of
the proposed bill would affect municipalities and the last two
sections would affect state agencies. The first three sections
would permt a nunicipality to adopt an ordinance to post the
following three things on its web site rather than printing
t hem mll rates, foreclosure listings, and [expiration of]
redenption of foreclosures. He said simlar |egislation was
proposed in the past, but did not pass. He indicated that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- February 11, 2014



provisions in Section 1-3 of HB 275 were added after listening
to the concerns of the nunicipalities.

9:16: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated that the core of bill is in
Sections 4 and 5, which would reduce paper waste. He questioned
how many legislators actually read all the agency reports that
are required by law. He said under the proposed legislation, it
would be nmandatory for those reports to be delivered

el ectronically. He said there would be exceptions, found in
| anguage of Section 5, [beginning on page 4, line 30, through
page 5, line 4], which read as foll ows:

An agency may not produce print copies of
reports except as

(1) required
(A) under AS 14.56.120;
(B) by agreenent; or
(C by federal |aw, or
(2) requested under AS 44.99.260
or specifically approved by the head of a state agency
or the head's designee.

9:20:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said the bill would not conprom se the
public's right to know or the legislature's ability to access
i nformation. He directed attention to Section 4, and said the
state already utilizes the Alaska Online Public Notice System
and | anguage on page 4, line 24, would require reports of state

agencies to go onto that system Representati ve Hawker said HB
275 is not all-enconpassing, but is a step in making governnent

activities nore efficient. He said he thinks if this works out,
it will nmerit discussion in future years for expansion.
9:23: 22 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked how rmuch noney m ght be saved under HB 275.
9:23:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER indicated that in 2011, $1.6 mllion was
spent on publications. He said that "as we have narrowed the

scope of this legislation,” the Ofice of Mnagenent & Budget
(OMB) believes it is spending $530,000 for this type of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- February 11, 2014



reporting. He said, "The savings is going to be sonewhere

within that.” He said he thinks it is realistic to believe that
there wll be material savings across all agencies under HB 275,
and that future legislation could "go after the second million

dollars that's out there" and "be nore efficient and effective
wi t hout conmprom sing the public's need to know. "

9:24:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES thanked the bill sponsor for what she
call ed "common sense legislation.” She said as a new | egi sl ator
| ast year, she soon realized the difficulty in reading every
hard copy report and finding space to keep them all. She said

she had mde a suggestion that the reports be provided
el ectronically, with a list of all the reports for |egislators
to see. Representati ve Hughes questioned the reasoning behind
t he | anguage regardi ng graphic design reports, on page 5, [lines
13-17].

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER indicated that sone reports seem to have
nore enphasis on technical beauty than content. Under the
proposed | egislation, an agency would not be allowed to hire a
contractor to provide photographs or graphics unless there is no
one in the agency qualified to do the work or hiring a
contractor would cost the state less. In response to a follow
up question, he said he has no idea if an agency has ever [hired
a contractor for a job that would have cost |ess done in house],
but he has noted the "large volune of what would appear to be
very costly photographs” in the reports to legislators that are
delivered and "going by the wayside so very quickly." He said
the concept of the bill is to allow agency heads to retain as
much decision-making latitude as possible, while being m ndfu

that the directive from the legislature is to use the state's
resources nore efficiently.

9: 30: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER renmarked he is sure the sponsor agrees
that the intent is not to quell information. He said he would
not mnd if agencies spent funds doing work on getting
i nformation avail able, such as a specialized application where a
| egislator could find information on an i Pad. He said he does
not want to propose an anendnment, but would |ike the sponsor's
response.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER acknow edged the inportance of testinony
in terns of conveying the intent of legislation, and he

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- February 11, 2014



confirmed that the "need 1in the state" suggested by
Representative Keller would not be conprom sed under HB 275.

9:32: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KREI SS- TOWKI NS opi ned t hat t he pr oposed
legislation is fantastic. He echoed Representative Hughes

remark about being a new | egislator and noticing the noney being
spent on reports. Regardi ng graphics, he said he thinks there
is an incentive for state agencies to out-do each other in
design, in an attenpt to garner the nost attention from the
| egislature to secure funds for their causes. He surm sed that
the cost of design has got to be extraordinary. He stated,
"When we're hearing nunbers like half a mllion to over a
mllion, it's not ... just a synbolic gesture, but it's real
savi ngs. " He said he suspects the aforenentioned |anguage on
page 5, regarding graphics, wuld result in even greater
savi ngs.

9:34: 04 AM

KATH E WASSERMAN, Executive Director, Alaska Minicipal League
(AML), testified that AM. supports HB 275. She renmarked that
this is the first time in her nmany years involved in |ocal
governnent that she has wtnessed the state relax a nandate on
muni ci palities, and she said that is reason for «celebration.
She stated that nobst conmunities know best how to relay
information to their people. She pointed out that, unlike
| egislators who nust |eave their constituents to take part in
the 90-day legislative session, nunicipal officials are in the
vicinity of the people they serve every day; therefore,
muni ci pal officials know early on whether information has been
delivered or not. She said as a fornmer mayor in many small
communities, she was required many years ago to post everything
in the closest newspaper, which, with any luck, was delivered to

her community six days |ater. She said that was a waste, but
she knew how to get the infornation to the people, and other
muni ci palities do, as well. She thanked the bill sponsor for

bring HB 275 forward.
9:35: 52 AM

CHAI R LYNN suggested that perhaps [l egislators] should not be so
i sol at ed.

9: 36: 08 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- February 11, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE | SAACSON said he echoes the testinony of M.
Wassernman and thinks the proposed legislation is "extrenely
hel pful ." He said the elective aspect of posting requirenents
i s good. He asked Ms. Wassernan what kind of feedback she nmay
have received regardi ng HB 275.

9:37:13 AM

M5. WASSERMAN said she has heard from a few comunities, but
AML's winter neeting is not until another week, at which point
the issue will be discussed at |length. She said she thinks she
has been in her job long enough to know that for the nobst part,
if a legislative bill "falls wunder l|ocal control,”™ AM. would
never oppose it.

9: 38: 05 AM

DEBORAH L. REICH, Foreclosure Specialist, Real Estate Services
Di vision, Departnent of Real Estate, Minicipality of Anchorage,
testified in support of HB 275. She said the Minicipality of
Anchorage appreciates the provision in the proposed |egislation
that would give nunicipalities across the state the option to

publish foreclosure notices on line or in |ocal news
publ i cati ons. She said that change would save the nunicipality
a mnimm of $20,000 annually, a significant savings in tines
when budgets are so tight. She expressed appreciation to the
bill sponsor and offered to answer questions fromthe commttee.
9: 39: 37 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

9:39:46 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 275(CRA) out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 275(CRA) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.
9:40: 05 AM

The commttee took an at-ease from9:40 a.m to 9:43 a.m

HB 199- VPSO FI REARVS

9:42: 45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- February 11, 2014



CHAI R LYNN announced the final order of business was HOUSE BILL
NO. 199, "An Act relating to Departnment of Public Safety
regulations allowing village public safety officers to carry
firearms."

9:43: 05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BRYCE EDGVON, Alaska State Legislature, as
sponsor, presented HB 199. He prefaced his introduction of the
proposed |legislation by offering an overview of the Village
Public Safety Oficer (VPSO program He said the program was
established "in the late '70s and early '80s" to provide safety
to outlying rural comunities that did not have access to
regul ar |law enforcenment presence. He stated that the program
has, for the nost part, been successful. He said there were 125
VPSCs working in the wearly '90s, but currently, of the
aut horized 120-plus authorized positions there are 92 or 93
wor ki ng VPSGs. He expl ained the reasons for the ebb and flow in
the nunbers of VPSGs are related to circunstances in the
particular conmunities and underscore one of the fundanental
i ssues of the program which has been turnover.

9:44: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON said having grown up in Dillingham a
rural part of the state, he is famliar with the circunstances
surrounding the VPSO program He said his research in preparing
to present HB 199 has taught him to appreciate what VPSGs do
t hroughout rural Al aska. He expressed pride in sone of the
changes that have occurred in rural Al aska over the years in the
areas of transportation, health care, and education, as well as
opportunities for living a subsistence/cash lifestyle; however
he said the increased use of hard drugs and pervasive use of
al cohol have resulted in increased violence in rural Al aska
comuni ties. He indicated that these problens have created a
nore | ethal environment in which VPSGCs nust operate.

9:46: 11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON expl ained that all this cane to a head on
March 19, [2014], when a VPSO lost his life in the line of duty.
He said on a recent trip hone, he listened to harrow ng accounts
of the experiences of tw VPSGs, who sonetines dealt wth
perpetrators with high powered rifles and other arns that put a
VPSO in danger. Representative Edgnon said he introduced HB 199
to require [the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Public Safety]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- February 11, 2014



not to prohibit VPSGs from carrying firearns. He enphasized
that under HB 199, VPSGs would have to neet mninmum standards
and training in order to qualify to carry firearns.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON rel ayed that he has been contacted by nmany

not-for-profit organizations around the state, as well as
menbers of the rural community, and he said he thinks the
support [for HB 199] is w despread. He said there are a few

communities that have sonme trepidation and may not want to have
an arnmed VPSO however, the way HB 199 is structured, that
decision would be nmade between the departnent, the regional
Nat i ve association, and the community itself.

9:49: 18 AM

REPRESENTATIVE EDGMON said there is a fiscal note of
approximately $62,000 a year, which is based on the departnment's
prem se that about 20 VPSOs would be sent to the training
acadeny in Sitka, Al aska. He said the fiscal note is broken
dowmn into three conponents: travel; liability, wunder the
servi ces conponent; and conmodities, including the cost of the
firearns, holsters, and anmmuniti on.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON relayed that |ast week he learned of a
VPSO program oversight issue, which the department is currently
in the process of rectifying. He recommended the comittee
invite Captain Steve Arlow to explain the oversight and have the
deputy conm ssioner provide details about the training program
that would be offered under HB 199. He said during the |ast
| egi sl ative session, the departnment began putting regulations
into effect that would not prohibit a regional association in a
community to work towards the process of getting a VPSO arned.

He said the thrust of the bill is to nmake the proposed change in
perpetuity and to help legitimze the program in ternms of any
secondary issues that may follow the armng of VPSGCs in Al aska

In response to the chair, he confirnmed that under HB 199, the
arm ng of VPSOs would be optional for rural comunities.

9:51:44 AM

STEVE ARLOW Captain, C Detachnment Commander, Division of State
Troopers, Departnent of Public Safety (DPS), testified that he
has run the Al aska VPSO program for the last eight years. He
brought to the attention of the commttee an event wherein a
nonprofit organization hired a VPSO with a felony conviction.
In response to the chair, he said conviction was for a Driving
Under the Influence (DU ) incident, which resulted in the harm

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- February 11, 2014



of another individual, but he indicated that there were no
firearns invol ved. He said there is a procedure, witten in
regul ation 13 AAC, which gives guidelines on what investigators
are supposed to consider and what they can and cannot approve in
a person's background. The regulation nmakes clear that a person
with a felony conviction cannot enter into the VPSO program and
a nonprofit cannot use state funds to hire sonmeone with a felony
conviction as a VPSO Neverthel ess, he pointed out that there
is regulation that allows the conmssioner of DPS or his
designee to review any denials in the process by a nonprofit, if
the nonprofit requests the review He said that is what
happened in the aforenentioned case. He said this case cane to
his desk after an investigator reviewed the background, which
showed that the person interested in becomng a VPSO was from
the cormunity, and his father had been a VPSO for over 20 years.
The application was the first the departnent had received from
this village since the father had left.

CAPTAIN ARLOW stated that it is challenging to find people who
will fill VPSO positions, and the nonprofit organization said
the community really supported the selection of the individua
as its VPSO he had only one felony event, and that was twelve
years ago. He said he reviewed the case yesterday and it
appears it is conplex, because the details are unclear. He said
there is a letter from the district attorney, who wanted to
decline prosecution because of insufficient evidence, but the
case went forward and a plea agreenment was nade to a different
| evel of assault, but it was still a felony. He said it also
appears that the information surrounding the event is "a little
muddy." He offered further details.

CAPTAI N ARLOW explained that he shared this information as an
exanple not only of why there are guiding regulations, but also
why there is a stipulation that allows a conmm ssioner or his/her
designee to "look at these on a case-by-case basis to detern ne"
whet her each neets "the intent of the law, the letter of the

| aw. " He said this is the only individual in the program who
has the background of a felony conviction. He said, "W don't
make it a practice, but it is sonething that in this case we did
have one." In response to followup questions, he reiterated
that the person was convicted of a felony, and he said the
person is still working as a VPSO and appears to be doing a very
good | ob.

9:57.20 AM

CHAI R LYNN asked what the entry pay is for a VPSO

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- February 11, 2014



CAPTAIN ARLOW answered it is currently $25 an hour, and there
could be benefit packages included, depending on which nonprofit
enpl oys the VPSQO Further, he said in sone instances the
communities provide housing and stipends for fuel "and other
things" for those living in a rural village.

9:57:56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES recollected that the sponsor had said
there are currently 93 VPSGs working, and she asked how many
villages that covers. Al so, she asked how long a rural
community mght expect to wait wuntil an arned Al aska State
Trooper arrived.

CAPTAI N ARLOW answered that currently there are 69 communities
serviced by VPSOs; however, sone VPSGs are assigned to hub
communities that touch other comunities beyond those 69.
Regarding response tinme, he relayed that having been the
det achment commander for Western Alaska for many years, he can
say that there are tinmes Alaska State Troopers have arrived in
villages the same day, even within hours of an event. He said
there are not enough troopers to respond to all conmunities
si mul t aneously, but they do their best to respond to calls and
have to prioritize them

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES said having lived out in Bush communiti es,
response tine is a concern. She added, "Thus the need for this
| egi slation."

10: 00: 28 AM

CHAI R LYNN said he thinks HB 199 is an inportant bill.

10: 00: 30 AM

CHAI R LYNN cl osed public testinony.

10: 01: 08 AM

CHAI R LYNN r eopened public testinony.
[ HB 199 was hel d over.]

10: 01: 13 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- February 11, 2014



ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Comrittee neeting was adjourned at 10:01
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- February 11, 2014



